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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

INDEPENDENT VERIFICATION & VALIDATION (IV&V) SERVICES  
FOR THE  

STATEWIDE FINANCIAL SYSTEM (SFS) 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 8/20/2019 
 
 

The official responses to questions submitted pursuant to Section 3.4 of the above-
captioned Request for Proposals (RFP) are listed below. Responses are in bold blue type. 
 
1) Is there a current primary and secondary firm working with NYS SFS on a similar or 

same effort under another contract?  If so, who are these firms and are they allowed 
to bid on this opportunity? 
 
Response: NYS SFS does not have primary and secondary firms working on 
similar efforts.  Currently NYS SFS obtains IV&V services through KPMG, LLP.  
KPMG is not precluded from bidding on this opportunity. 

2) What contractors have been involved in providing IV&V services on this project to 
date? 
 
Response: KPMG, LLP has provided IV&V services to SFS to date. 

3) Page 6, section 2.0:  Under min qualification, (B) it states that the proposer must 
have led a min of two IV&V IT financials application projects and led a min of one 
IV&V IT project where the total cost for the entire system solution had a value of $ 5 
million or greater.  We have three questions related to this:   
 
a) To allow more diversification of bidders and more small businesses to bid on this 

opportunity, including certified MBE/WBE firms, will NYS SFS allow the 
“proposer” to use sub-contractors qualifications to meet part B of the min 
qualifications? 
 
Response: No, the firm submitting a proposal in response to this RFP 
(Proposer) must meet the minimum qualifications based solely on their 
firm’s relevant experience.    
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b) To allow more diversification of bidders and more small businesses, including 

certified MBE/WBE firms to bid on this opportunity, will NYS SFS allow all IV&V 
experience to qualify the firm vs. just projects where IT financial applications 
were involved?  
 
Response: To meet Minimum Qualifications to Propose in RFP section 
2.b.i, the IV&V experience must be related to IT financial applications.  For 
RFP section 2.b.ii, the Proposer’s experience may be an IT project that 
does not necessarily need to involve financial applications so long as it 
meets the other criteria outlined in that section.   

 
c) We assume the 5 million or more is referencing the entire project spend including 

the SI and IV&V services cost?   
 
Response: Yes, the $5 million minimum value can include the total cost for 
the entire system solution (including staffing, software, hardware, 
implementation, training, quality assurance, and change management 
services). 

4) Page 10, section G. Reference letters:  For the proposer, will NYS SFS allow 
reference point of contact information vs. letters of reference which are sometimes 
impossible to obtain due to legal concerns by corporate or public sector entities? 
 
Response: No. The State maintains its requirement for letters of reference as 
described in RFP section 3.1.G.  The Division is not aware of any prohibition in 
law, rule, or regulation against a corporate or public sector entity providing a 
reference as stated in RFP section 3.1.G. 

5) Will NYS SFS grant more time for bidders to respond this opportunity by extending 
the due date out by another two weeks? 
 
Response: No. The State maintains the Proposal Submission Deadline of 12 
pm ET on September 9, 2019 as established in the RFP. 

6) Can the State extend the proposal due date by 2 weeks? 
 
Response: No. The State maintains the Proposal Submission Deadline of 12 
pm ET on September 9, 2019 as established in the RFP. 

 
7) Will NYS SFS grant more MBE/WBE participation on this procurement and increase 

the goal from 20 to 30%?  There are many NYS Certified MBE/WBE firms that can 
provide these staff or do these services directly. 
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Response: The State maintains the MWBE participation goal as established in 
the RFP.  However, this does not prohibit a bidder firm from proposing MWBE 
participation above 20%.  Additionally, this does not prohibit a MWBE firm that 
meets the technical requirements from bidding itself. 

 

8) It is our understanding the State will determine the need for IV&V related services.  
Once a scope of specific IV&V services is requested by the State, will both primary 
and secondary firms submit bids? 
 
Response: Per section 1.3 of the RFP governing the Utilization of the Primary 
and Secondary Firm (page 6 of RFP), the State will give the Primary Firm the 
first opportunity to accept an assignment, unless in the case of a condition 
noted in bullets A. – E. of that section.  There is no commitment by the State 
that the Secondary Firm will be requested to provide any services. The State 
will award assignments to the Secondary Firm if one or more of the conditions 
listed in A. – E. exist. 

9) Is the State in the process of implementing OPS9.2 on premise? 
 
Response: The State upgraded to Oracle PeopleSoft Financials version 9.2 in 
October 2015.  Our implementation is on premises. 

10)  Is the State deploying the new solution on a per agency basis?  Is the deployment 
plan available to share? 
 
Response: No, the Statewide Financial System is a New York State enterprise-
wide solution.  While modification to existing modules or the implementation 
of additional modules may accompany agency on-boardings, the enterprise 
solution remains a single instance of PeopleSoft Financials.   

11)  Are system enhancements, software upgrades, or re-platforming the solution in the 
future plans?  Is the plan available to share? 
 
Response: Oracle PeopleSoft provides software releases quarterly and SFS 
generally performs bi-annual updates that include the latest software releases.  
Other major system enhancements are approved on a case by case basis by 
the SFS Joint Governance Board as enterprise projects.  As projects are 
identified that require IV&V services, SFS will provide the necessary planning 
documentation to the successful bidder to assist in completing statements of 
work. 

12)  Would the State please clarify what SFS functionality has already been deployed 
into production, versus what SFS functionality is planned for the future? 
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Response: SFS is currently running on PeopleSoft FSCM Version 9.2, Image 
31.  The following modules have been deployed: Asset Management, Billing, 
Cash Management, Contracts, Deal Management, Expenses, eProcurement, 
eSettlements, eSupplier Connection, General Ledger, Grants, Inventory, 
Maintenance Management, Payables, Program Management, Project Costing, 
Purchasing, Real Estate Management, Receivables, Supply Chain.  Future 
functionality may include, but is not limited to the implementation of future 
image upgrades, and other functionality as described in section 1.2 of the 
RFP. 

 

13)  For these future SFS projects, while we understand that the State is seeking IV&V 
assistance “on an as-needed basis in variable-term consulting”, is there a high-level 
workplan and/or roadmap that outlines the scope and/or timeline for these various 
future SFS projects? 

 
Response: It is not anticipated that all SFS projects will require IV&V services.  
As projects are identified that require IV&V services, SFS will provide the 
necessary planning documentation to the successful bidder to assist in 
completing statements of work.  Some potential projects that are anticipated 
to occur during the term of this project would include, but not be limited to the 
following: 
 

Potential Enterprise Projects  
where IV&V Services may be requested Estimated Project Timeframe 

 
 

SFS Analytics Enhancement Project  This project would begin in 2019, and has 
an expected duration of 24 months.   

Interagency Billing Service Centers  The project will begin in 2019 with an 
expected duration of 18 months. 

 

Agency On-boarding Projects   This project is underway and is expected to 
take approximately 30 months.   

 

 
 
 

14)  Can SFS please share its implementation roadmap (if one is available)? 
 
Response: This information will be provided to the winning bidder.     

 

15)  What are the expected PeopleSoft modules/functionality to be implemented? 
 

Response: Future functionality may include, but is not limited to the 
implementation of future image upgrades, and other functionality as described 
in section 1.2 of the RFP and answer to question 11 of this document. 
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16)  Would the State please confirm what version of PeopleSoft SFS is currently on? 

 
Response: PeopleSoft Financials Version 9.2, Image 31. 
 

17)  To improve the quality of bids and align staff skills with the project’s scope, will the 
state provide a listing of existing or anticipated PeopleSoft modules and products 
(e.g., eProcurement, Supplier Contracts) that will be part of the State Financial 
System?  And, is the state able to provide an estimate of the number of additional 
agencies that will be on-boarded? 

 
Response: Please refer to question 12 in regards to modules and functionality.   
Regarding on-boarding, SFS anticipates on-boarding approximately three 
additional agencies during the term of this engagement. 

 

18)  3.1.C.1 - Minimum qualifications: What is considered acceptable for "proof" that our 
company has been in business for five or more years? 

 
Response: The documentation will vary based on the type of legal entity of the 
Proposer (Corporation, LLC, LLP, etc.).   Firms should provide legal 
documentation from the firm’s authorizing authority, e.g. NYS Department of 
State or other State or governing authority. 

 
19)  Form 3: If we are bidding as a Prime with subcontractors, do our subcontractors 

need to sign this form? 
 

Response: Yes, joint or combined bids by companies or firms must be 
certified on behalf of each participant. 

 
20)  Section 1.3: Will the Primary or Secondary Firms be required to have dedicated 

resources available? The assumption is that these dedicated resources will have 
gained familiarity with the New York State Statewide Financial System (SFS) 
ecosystem. 
 
Response: Yes. It is expected that individuals named in sections 3.1.E. of the 
RFP will be available for these services throughout the term of the contract. 


